
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 15, 2023 DRAFT PAC Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_MAY_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Connie Bodeker (Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A-2 

(General Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 28.031.1201. 

TBD 338th Street Way Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of 

Section 31 TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. 

PACPACKET_BODEKER_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request submitted by Richard McNamara (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review 

of the proposed McNamara Hay Creek Farm Plat comprising approximately 96.24 

acres. Parcels 34.019.0300 and 34.020.1600. Old Church Road Red Wing, MN 55066. 

The S ½ of the NE ¼ and part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 19 TWP 112 Range 

14 and part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 20 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay 

Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_MCNAMARA_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Kolshorn Ridge Second” Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request submitted by Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners) for Preliminary and Final 

Plat review of the proposed Kolshorn Ridge Second Plat comprising approximately 

21.36 acres. Parcels 34.125.0010, 34.125.0020, 34.019.2802, 34.125.0011 and 

34.030.0300. TBD Kolshorn Road Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 1 Block 1 and Outlot A of 

the Kolshorn Ridge Addition, Part of the S ½ of the SE ¼ Section 19 TWP 112 Range 

14 and Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 30 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay Creek 

Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_TIPCKE_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates

Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), 

and Article 20 (Table of Uses) to amend definitions for Farm and Agricultural Operation, 

add a definition for Rural Tourism, remove Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-

Tourism and replace with Rural Tourism, amend performance standards and the Table 

of Uses to correlate with the addition of Rural Tourism.

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 15, 2023 DRAFT PAC Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_MAY_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Connie Bodeker (Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A-2 

(General Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 28.031.1201. 

TBD 338th Street Way Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of 

Section 31 TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. 

PACPACKET_BODEKER_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request submitted by Richard McNamara (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review 

of the proposed McNamara Hay Creek Farm Plat comprising approximately 96.24 

acres. Parcels 34.019.0300 and 34.020.1600. Old Church Road Red Wing, MN 55066. 

The S ½ of the NE ¼ and part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 19 TWP 112 Range 

14 and part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 20 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay 

Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_MCNAMARA_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Kolshorn Ridge Second” Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request submitted by Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners) for Preliminary and Final 

Plat review of the proposed Kolshorn Ridge Second Plat comprising approximately 

21.36 acres. Parcels 34.125.0010, 34.125.0020, 34.019.2802, 34.125.0011 and 

34.030.0300. TBD Kolshorn Road Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 1 Block 1 and Outlot A of 

the Kolshorn Ridge Addition, Part of the S ½ of the SE ¼ Section 19 TWP 112 Range 

14 and Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 30 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay Creek 

Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_TIPCKE_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates

Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), 

and Article 20 (Table of Uses) to amend definitions for Farm and Agricultural Operation, 

add a definition for Rural Tourism, remove Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-

Tourism and replace with Rural Tourism, amend performance standards and the Table 

of Uses to correlate with the addition of Rural Tourism.

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/6eb083ce-9384-4ad3-8b0e-da86d3453140


Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Vice-Chair Richard Nystuen at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 
Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Marc Huneke (arrived at 6:03 
PM), Howard Stenerson, Richard Nystuen, and Todd Greseth.  
Commissioners Absent: Chris Buck 
Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field. 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting 
agenda. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Greseth; seconded by Commissioner Miller to approve the 
previous month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 6:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Non-Agricultural Use Associated with 
Agri-Tourism (Wedding and Event Center) 
Request for CUP submitted by James Goplen (Owner) to establish a wedding and event center 
with a proposed maximum occupancy of 299 guests. Parcel 40.022.0600. 49540 158th AVE Pine 
Island, MN 55963. The NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 22 TWP 109 Range 16 in Roscoe Township. 
A-1 Zoned District.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Commissioner Gale asked if they need a permit from Roscoe Township for the proposed use. 
   
Pierret stated the Township reviewed the request and signed the acknowledgment.  However, 
they do not need a separate permit from them.     



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 
 
Pierret summarized a letter received from an attorney for a neighboring property owner in 
opposition to the request based on some of the zoning definitions. They do not feel this fits in an 
A-1 district. There are also concerns about the safety of the road, dust control, and things of 
that nature. A copy has been provided to the Applicant, was emailed to the commissioners and 
a hard copy was at each commissioner’s chair tonight. This letter should be entered into the 
record.  
 
John Giesen, an attorney representing David Bye (neighboring property owner), stated that 
the language of the Ordinance should apply. This is not a non-agricultural use associated with 
agricultural tourism, this is simply a non-agricultural use.   
 
David Bye, 50130 158th Avenue, Pine Island. He is south of the property in question, towards 
County Road 11. He stated this will negatively affect his family. There will be high traffic and 
his feedlot is close to the road. Events with alcohol will be a big liability to his family.  If 
someone hits the fence and livestock gets out and someone hits an animal, he would be liable, 
even though he did not even know the fence was broken. Crossing the road with more traffic 
would be dangerous. He is on that road constantly in the summertime. He doesn’t want to see 
anyone get hurt.   
 
Mr. Bye read a letter from his son, Eric Bye. He is concerned for safety due to the large 
equipment they use with the additional traffic on the road. Mr. Bye provided some pictures 
and the letter for the record.   
 
Dennis Kohlgagen, 50117 158th Avenue, Pine Island, stated they just built their forever home.  
They did some research before purchasing the property and chose this location knowing there 
would not be any large commercial properties nearby that would increase the traffic flow in 
the area.  His concern is the traffic.  The road is not meant for a lot of traffic.  They would 
never have built their house where they did if they had known that a business, including 
serving alcohol, would be just down the road.   
 
Mr. Goplen (Owner/Applicant) stated that this road does go in both directions. Not everybody 
has to come past their places. He has some good friends who farm on the other side of Pine 
Island where the Pondview Event Center is located. That facility is on a dead-end road and 
everyone has to go past the farm and they have not had any problems.    
 
3After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the 
Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
Hanni stated that it sounds like one of the biggest concerns is the safety of the road. She 
questioned whether the applicant and the Board would consider that event traffic must be 
routed from 158th AVE north to 490th AVE then east to County 43 BLVD and then they could 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

head south to County 11 BLVD. They could direct traffic that way to avoid all of the hills and 
farm equipment that was brought up. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson said that traffic signs may or may not work.  His concern is safety 
and A-1 protection. The CUP goes with the land, so when the land is sold, the CUP is still valid.  
He has a problem supporting this in an A-1 District.   
 
Commissioner Miller indicated that he has a farm close to the Pondview Event Center and has 
not had any issues at all with the traffic pattern during harvest or planting. He does not see 
that as a major issue. He also mentioned that an Interim Use Permit could be issued rather 
than a CUP.  The IUP does not go with the land so in the event the land was sold, the IUP would 
become invalid at that time.   
 
Commissioner Greseth said if they were building a new building, he would be against the 
request.  However, the Applicant has an existing building and he does not see that much of a 
change.    
 
Commissioner Gale asked what if, in the future, they want to add another high-density hog 
barn.   
 
Commissioner Greseth stated that having the event center is not going to change the 1000-foot 
setback required from Feedlots. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson said the 1000-foot setback is the minimum setback. There is also the 
odor offset distances and farming operations keep expanding.  The more animal units, the 
further that offset distance needs to be which is an issue. It isn’t just 1000 feet from the venue, it 
is 1000 feet plus whatever the odor offset would be. We are potentially restricting a feedlot 
expansion in what has become one of the big profit centers of agriculture that we are trying to 
protect. 
 
Commissioner Greseth stated that the farm site is already established so whatever they are 
doing there is not going to change anybody else’s setbacks coming in. If they were proposing to 
add housing units, that does change that 1000-foot setback and that is going to restrict your 
animal units.    
 
4It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Greseth for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from James Goplen to 
establish a wedding/event facility with a maximum occupancy of 299 guests. Subject to the 
following conditions: 



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this IUP; 

2. Hours of operation shall be year-round Fridays and Saturdays from 8:00 AM to midnight 
and Sundays from 8:00 AM to 10:00 PM; 

3. Maximum occupancy shall be limited to 299 guests per event; 
4. On-street loading, off-loading, and parking shall be prohibited; 
5. All exterior signage located on the property must follow Goodhue County Zoning 

Ordinance Article 11 Section 17 (sign Regulations); 
6. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approval for change-of-use of an existing structure 

prior to establishing the use; 
7. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 

regulations;  
8. Compliance with Goodhue Counting Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 

Article 11 Section 30 Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism and 
Article 21 Agricultural Protection District;   

9. This IUP shall expire upon the sale of the property; and 
10. Event traffic shall be routed along 158th Avenue north of the site to 490th Street. Maps 

shall be provided to guests and the route shall be clearly posted with signs.   
Commissioner Fox thinks that re-routing traffic is important due to the hills and curves on 
158th Avenue in the wintertime.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked if the Township was liable if a Township road became a safety 
issue.  

Hanni stated that it is the responsibility of the Townships to maintain its roads.    

Motion carried 5:2 (Commissioner Stenerson and Commissioner Gale opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Contractors Yard (L&L Trucking of 
Mazeppa Inc.) 

Request for CUP submitted by Luke Luhman (Owner/Operator) to allow a Contractors Yard for 
parking and storage of trucks as part of L&L Trucking of Mazeppa Inc. Parcel 47.014.0201. 
42107 228th AVE Mazeppa, MN 55956. Part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 14 TWP 110 
Range 15 in Zumbrota Township. A-1 Zoned District.  

Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked if there had been any complaints.  

Pierret said not from any of their neighbors.   

Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 
No one spoke for or against the request.   
5After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the 
Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner Stenerson indicated that this is not incompatible because farms all use 
machinery.  We may want to consider this as an IUP so it follows the ownership of the 
property and expires with the sale of the land.   
6It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Luke 
Luhman (owner/operator) for a Contractors Yard. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Contractors Yard shall be constructed according to submitted plans, specifications, 
and narrative unless modified by a condition of this IUP; 

2. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 
21 (Agricultural Protection District) and Article 11 Section 33 (Contractors Yards); 

3. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations;  

4. No on-street parking, loading, or off-loading permitted; and 
5. This IUP shall expire upon the sale of the property.  
 

There was discussion as to whether a 5th condition requiring that no hauled materials be stored on-
site should be added. Commissioner Stenerson indicated that we do have junk ordinances to deal 
with those situations.  

Motion carried 7:0 

Other Discussion 

Discussion of Ordinance Amendments (Rural Tourism) continued. 

Pierret stated that a map of the county and the agricultural tourism, wedding venues, orchards, etc. 
were included in the packets. Anything that she could find with a quick Google search are shown and 
the zoning districts those are in. Also included were some proposed definitions and wording for 
Rural Tourism and Agricultural Operations with some language suggestions incorporated. A CUP 
ends after the operation ceases to exist for a year or more.    
7ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 7:04 p.m.  

Motion carried 7:0 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

 



Page 6 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 May 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 6:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 6:0  
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0  
4 APPROVE the request for an IUP to establish wedding/event facility 
Motion carried 5:2 (Stenerson and Gale opposed)  
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0  
6 APPROVE the request for a IUP for a Contractor’s Yard 
Motion carried 7:0 
7 ADJOURN.  Motion to adjourn the meeting 
Motion carried 7:0 

                                                           



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 5 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 
Report date: June 2, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)  
Request, submitted by Connie Bodeker (Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A-2 (General 
Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Connie Bodeker (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: TBD 338th Street Way Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
Parcel: 28.031.1201 
Legal Description: Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls 
Township. 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Project Review (Rezone) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Overview:  
The Applicant (Connie Bodeker, Owner) has submitted a “change of zone” request involving a 46.89-
acre parcel of property in Cannon Falls Township to rezone the property from A2 (General 
Agriculture District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District) to allow the potential to establish up to 
three dwelling sites.  

The current A-2 zoning classification does not allow dwelling establishment on the property due to 
the A2 section density maximum of 12 dwellings, one per original ¼ ¼ section. Section 31 of Cannon 
Falls Township currently has 19 dwellings. Section 31 is 0.4 miles wider than a typical Township 
section meaning section 31 is approximately 256 acres larger than a typical section. Almost all 
sections surrounding Section 31 in Cannon Falls and Leon Township are zoned A-2 and have more 
than 12 dwellings. 

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single parcel comprising 46.89 acres. Most of the parcel 

consists of undeveloped/vacant woodland with some steeper slopes. There is an existing 
accessory building with fenced-in paddocks located on the east side of the parcel near 338th 
Street Way.  

 The property is currently zoned A2. Adjacent properties on all sides are zoned A2. A contiguous 
parcel to the south (37.006.0701, owned by Krista Paige) is zoned R1. This parcel was rezoned in 
2022 from A2 for up to three dwelling units.   

 The subject property is surrounded by medium-density residential development and steeper 
sloped woodlands. Highway 52 comprises part of the property’s western border.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 5 

 The parcel is located less than 2 miles from the City of Cannon Falls.  

 The property is not located within a Historic Preservation District. It is not anticipated that any 
historic amenities will be negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone. Some portions 
of the property are considered blufflands however there is space for three dwellings with 
associated utilities and access drives to be developed without negatively disturbing these 
sensitive features.  

 No portions of the property are designated Shoreland or Floodplain.  
 

Proposed Uses: 
 The Applicant has proposed a maximum of three residential lots to be created from this parcel. 

The proposed parcels would be accessed via 338th Street Way. If the Change of Zone is approved, 
a Preliminary and Final Plat must be submitted for consideration and approval by the PAC and 
County Board to subdivide the property. 

 It should be noted that the R-1 District limits the number of farm animals (horses, goats, 
chickens, etc.) to one animal unit per acre with an Interim Use Permit. If the parcel is rezoned, 
the existing structure could not be used for farm animals without an Interim Use Permit.  

Accessibility: 
 The Right-of-Way authority for 338th Street Way is Cannon Falls Township. Township Clerk Sue 

Safe indicated to staff via email that the road would need some attention to construct dwellings 
on this parcel. The Applicant will need to work with Cannon Falls Township to address these 
matters during a building permit or platting phase at the Township’s discretion. Staff conducted 
a site visit on May 31, 2023, and noted that 338th Street Way is quite narrow in some areas.   

Planning Information: 
 The R1 District is intended to provide a district that defines and protects areas suitable for low to 

medium-density residential development as the principal use of the land and to allow related 
facilities desirable for a residential environment. It is also intended that the district allows varying 
densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water and sewer facilities. 

 The property is mostly undeveloped woodlands with varying topography. There is one existing 
accessory building with fenced-in areas existing on the east side of the property. Section 31 does 
not contain any registered feedlots.  

 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows:  

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Winneshiek Silt Loam 6-12% 0.5 1.0% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Ridgeton Sandy 
Substratum 

6-12% 1.1 2.3% Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Ridgeton Sandy 
Substratum 

12-20% 0.9 1.9% Not Prime Farmland 

Waucoma-Winneshiek 
Complex 

6-12% 2.3 4.9% Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Winneshiek-Waucoma 
Complex 

18-35% 6.2 13.1% Not Prime Farmland 

Waucoma Loam 
 

2-6% 0.3 0.6% Prime Farmland 

Schapville-Shullsburg 
Complex 

6-12% 10.8 22.8% Not Prime Farmland 

Schapville Silt Loam 
 

12-18% 11.7 24.6% Not Prime Farmland 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 5 

Schapville Silt Loam 
 

18-35% 2.9 6.0% Not Prime Farmland 

Brodale, Flaggy-
Schapville Complex 

18-80% 10.8 22.8% Not Prime Farmland 

 

Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan: 

 The proposed rezone appears compatible with the goals and objectives of the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan:  

“Support the establishment of rural residences to provide rural living opportunities in the 
unincorporated areas of Goodhue County” 

“Work with Townships to evaluate and designate suitable residential sites that minimize 
conflicts with agricultural and rural uses” 

“Direct the location of new or replacement dwelling sites in areas that minimize loss or 
conversion of prime agriculture soils” 

Cannon Falls Township:  

Cannon Falls Township Clerk Sue Safe provided staff with comments via email on May 11, 2023. She 
stated that: “CF Township held their regular monthly meeting last night [May 10th] and met with 
Connie Bodeker (owner of parcel) and Bob Stahlberger (realtor). They discussed the rezoning of 
Parcel #28.031.1201 from Ag to R-1. Their hope is to sell the parcel as R-1 with a possibility of 1-3 
subdivisions. They do not want more dwellings than that on that parcel. If that would happen, the 
road would definitely need some attention. The board approved the rezone.” 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission:  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request from 
Connie Bodeker (Property Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A2 (General Agriculture District) to R1 
(Suburban Residence District).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accessory building with fenced-in paddocks. 338th Street Way is behind the camera. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Looking east at 338th Street Way. The visible sheds nearest the camera are owned by the 
Applicant as part of their homestead located at 6842 338th Street Way.  
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
338th Street Way looking east.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
338th Street Way curve going east towards Serendipity.  



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

Project Review per Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 5-10: 
Subd. 5  A.   The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures to the 

petition.  See application  
B.  Survey information: See application 
C.  The current and proposed district:  A2 to R1 
D.  The current use and the proposed use of the land.  The property is currently 

woodlands with varying topography. There is an existing accessory 
building on the property with fenced-in paddocks.    

E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. Due to County dwelling 
density restrictions, the Applicant has proposed to rezone the property to 
a residential district and subsequently plat up to three building sites.   

F.  A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary and the 
surrounding area. A soils map for the site has been prepared. 
G.  Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F. 
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Winneshiek Silt Loam 6-12% 0.5 1.0% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Ridgeton Sandy 
Substratum 

6-12% 1.1 2.3% Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Ridgeton Sandy 
Substratum 

12-20% 0.9 1.9% Not Prime Farmland 

Waucoma-Winneshiek 
Complex 

6-12% 2.3 4.9% Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Winneshiek-Waucoma 
Complex 

18-35% 6.2 13.1% Not Prime Farmland 

Waucoma Loam 
 

2-6% 0.3 0.6% Prime Farmland 

Schapville-Shullsburg 
Complex 

6-12% 10.8 22.8% Not Prime Farmland 

Schapville Silt Loam 
 

12-18% 11.7 24.6% Not Prime Farmland 

Schapville Silt Loam 
 

18-35% 2.9 6.0% Not Prime Farmland 

Brodale, Flaggy-
Schapville Complex 

18-80% 10.8 22.8% Not Prime Farmland 

 
H.  A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan including but not limited to the following: 

1.  The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the: 
a.    Groundwater 
b. Natural plant and animal communities 
c.    Existing trees and vegetation 
d. Bluffland stability 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

e.    Shoreland stability 
There are some areas of Bluffland on the property. These sensitive 
features can be avoided and maintained in their natural state while 
developing up to three dwellings due to the size of the parcel. It is 
anticipated existing trees would need to be removed to accommodate 
the development of structures, utilities, and access drives. 

2.  The compatibility with surrounding land uses 
Surrounding land uses include medium-density residential. 
Residential housing located within the Serendipity Addition is 
located approximately ¼ mile southeast of the property. Medium-
density residential uses are also located to the east along 338th ST 
Way and there is an existing R1 zoned parcel directly to the south in 
Leon Township. Existing dwellings are separated from the property 
by woodlands and areas of steep slopes. Four dwelling sites border 
the property, one on each side (north, south, east, and west). All 
dwellings are surrounded by wooded areas with varying 
topography.  

3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities within or 
surrounding the proposed parcel. 
It is not anticipated that any historic amenities will be negatively 
impacted as a result of the proposed rezone. Existing blufflands can 
be avoided during development. Zoning staff and the Goodhue 
SWCD will review all proposed site plans for structures, grading, 
and access drives.  

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
 Section 31 is an A2-zoned section. A2 Districts allow a maximum of 12 

dwellings per section, one per original ¼ ¼ section. There are currently 19 
dwellings within the section therefore no dwelling site eligibility exists. If 
rezoned to R1, any dwellings constructed on R1 zoned parcels would not count 
towards the Section’s overall density.  
Section 31 is 0.4 miles wider than typical Township sections. This additional 
width adds approximately 256 acres to Section 31.  

Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses 
The property is not currently used for agricultural purposes. Almost none of 
the acreage is considered Prime Farmland. There are no existing feedlots in 
Section 31. If rezoned to R1, animal agriculture would not be a permitted use.  
An Interim Use Permit is required for any “farm” animals up to 1 animal unit 
per acre in the R1 District. No new Feedlots may be established in an R1 
District. 

Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure 
The Applicant’s property is accessed off of 338th St Way (aggregate surface). 
Cannon Falls Township (Right-of-Way authority) has indicated improvements 
will be needed to develop additional dwellings off of 338th St Way. The 
Applicant will need to work with the Township to address these matters during 
the platting or building permit phase at the Township’s discretion.  

Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts 
 The property and most surrounding properties are zoned A2. One parcel to the 

south (37.006.0701) is zoned R1. This parcel was rezoned to R1 from A2 in 
2022.  

Subd. 10 A statement concerning the cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested zoning 
change on the affected Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the proposed 
parcel. 
Rezoning the subject parcel to R1 does not appear to have negative cumulative 
effects on the immediate surrounding area or the City of Cannon Falls. The 
surrounding area is used primarily for medium-density residential among 
woodlands and steep slopes.  

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning staff. 





Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

M526C2 Winneshiek silt loam, 6 to 12 
percent slopes, moderately 
eroded

0.5 1.0%

N586C2 Ridgeton, sandy substratum-
Eden Prairie complex, 6 to 12 
percent slopes, moderately 
eroded

1.1 2.3%

N586D2 Ridgeton, sandy substratum-
Eden Prairie complex, 12 to 
20 percent slopes, 
moderately eroded

0.9 1.9%

N592B Cresent-Eden Prairie complex, 
2 to 6 percent slopes

0.0 0.0%

N597C2 Waucoma-Winneshiek complex, 
6 to 12 percent slopes, 
moderately eroded

2.3 4.9%

N598D2 Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 
12 to 18 percent slopes, 
moderately eroded

0.0 0.0%

N598E Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 
18 to 35 percent slopes

6.2 13.1%

N610B Waucoma loam, 2 to 6 percent 
slopes

0.3 0.6%

N630C2 Schapville-Shullsburg complex, 
6 to 12 percent slopes, 
moderately eroded

10.8 22.8%

N631D2 Schapville silt loam, 12 to 18 
percent slopes, moderately 
eroded

11.7 24.6%

N631E Schapville silt loam, 18 to 35 
percent slopes

2.9 6.0%

N632G Brodale, flaggy-Schapville 
complex, 18 to 80 percent 
slopes, rocky

10.8 22.8%

Totals for Area of Interest 47.6 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 

Custom Soil Resource Report

11















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 
Report date: June 2, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request, submitted by Richard McNamara (Owner), for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed McNamara Hay Creek Farm Plat comprising approximately 91.08 acres.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Richard McNamara (Owner)  
Address of zoning request: Old Church Road Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel(s): 34.019.0300 and 34.020.1600 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  The S ½ of the NE ¼ and part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 
19 TWP 112 Range 14 and part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 20 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay 
Creek Township 
Zoning District: A2 (General Agriculture District) 
Township: The Applicant will need to obtain appropriate signatures from Hay Creek Township upon 
final plat approval.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
Richard McNamara (Owner/Applicant) has had Ridgeline Group Inc. prepare a Preliminary and 
Final Plat prepared for the proposed “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” plat.  

According to the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance, any land subdivision which dedicates any 
interests to the public such as easements or roads must be formally platted. The proposed 
“McNamara Hay Creek Farm” plat dedicates frontage to Old Church Road and Old Camp Lane.  

The creation of three or more parcels from one parcel also must be platted. To retain the tillable land 
while selling the wooded/bluff areas, the Applicant has proposed to create five parcels from two 
existing parcels. The two existing parcels are in different sections of Hay Creek Township. To 
combine land in two different sections the land must be platted.   

The Applicant has proposed to plat all new parcels as Outlots. Outlots are not considered buildable 
per the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance. No structures including dwellings or accessory 
buildings may be constructed on any Outlot. Section 19 of Hay Creek Township is considered “full” 
for dwelling development, there are 26 dwellings where a maximum of 12 are allowed.  

Outlot A will be less than two acres in area (1.22 acres). The Subdivision Ordinance specifies that 
remnant land may be platted as an Outlot. This land is not able to be combined with any other lot 
due to the dedication of Old Camp Lane and the requirement that all non-contiguous land be 
separate parcels. All other lots will meet minimum lot size and access/frontage requirements.  

 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Richard 
McNamara for the Preliminary and Final Plat of the proposed “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” Plat 
comprising approximately 91.08 acres. 















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 
Report date: June 2, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Kolshorn Ridge Second” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request, submitted by Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners), for Preliminary and Final Plat review of 
the proposed Kolshorn Ridge Second Plat comprising approximately 21.36 acres.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners)  
Address of zoning request: TBD Kolshorn Road Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel(s): 34.125.0010, 34.125.0020, 34.019.2802, 34.125.0011 and 34.030.0300 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Lot 1 Block 1 and Outlot A of the Kolshorn Ridge Addition, Part of 
the S ½ of the SE ¼ Section 19 TWP 112 Range 14 and Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 30 
TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay Creek Township 
Zoning District: A2 (General Agriculture District) 
Township: The Applicant will need to obtain appropriate signatures from Hay Creek Township upon 
final plat approval.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners/Applicants) have had Johnson and Scofield Inc. prepare a 
Preliminary and Final Plat of the proposed “Kolshorn Ridge Second” plat.  

According to the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance, any land subdivision which dedicates any 
interests to the public such as easements or roads must be formally platted. The proposed “Kolshorn 
Ridge Second” plat dedicates frontage to Kolshorn Road.  

A formal plat must also be prepared to combine unplatted land with platted land. Parcels 
34.125.0010, 34.125.0020, and 34.125.0011 are currently platted as “Kolshorn Ridge”. To facilitate 
the sale of a building site with enough room to meet bluff setbacks the Applicants have proposed to 
add land from parcel 34.030.0300 to parcel 34.125.0010. The buildable portion of the new Lot 1 
Block 1 would only be in Section 30 of Hay Creek Township. Section 19 is considered “full” for 
dwelling development with 26 houses where a maximum of 12 are allowed. Section 30 is considered 
buildable as there are only 5 dwellings where a maximum of 12 are allowed (one per original ¼ ¼ 
section). Lot 1 Block 1 would be located within an open ¼ ¼ section.  

The Applicant has proposed to plat a new Outlot combining parcels 34.125.0011 and 34.019.2802. It 
should be noted that Outlots are not considered buildable for dwellings or accessory buildings per 
the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance.  

An existing driveway easement exists north of the platted area. Buyers of the buildable site will need 
to be added to this easement for access to Lot 1 Block 1. All parcels will meet minimum lot size and 
access standards.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Ryan 
and Christyn Tipcke for the Preliminary and Final Plat of the proposed “Kolshorn Ridge Second” Plat 
comprising approximately 21.36 acres. 















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 
Report date: June 2, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates  
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), and Article 20 
(Table of Uses) to amend definitions for Farm and Agricultural Operation, add a definition for Rural 
Tourism, remove Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-Tourism and replace with Rural Tourism, 
amend performance standards and the Table of Uses to correlate with the addition of Rural Tourism. 
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Amendments 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
 
Summary: 
The Ordinance Subcommittee met twice in early 2023 to discuss amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance for various definitions and replacing “Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural 
Tourism” with “Rural Tourism”. Staff brought these proposals and various background information 
to the Planning Commission in April and May for discussion and review before hosting a public 
hearing.  
 
Article 10: 

• Remove definition for Agricultural Land – outdated 
• Amend definition of Agricultural Operation to add property primarily used for… and 

agricultural processing provision clarification. An Agricultural Operation would be a property 
where the agricultural product is being raised or produced, not a facility primarily engaged in 
processing agricultural products.  

• Add Agricultural Processing definition – clarifies provision in Agricultural Operation 
definition.  

• Remove Non-Agricultural Related Products  
• Amend definition of Agricultural Tourism to reflect changes in the definition of Farm and 

Agricultural Operation  
• Amend definition of Farm to modernize.  
• Remove Non-Agricultural Uses/Activities Associated with Agri-Tourism. This will be 

replaced with Rural Tourism.  
• Add definition for Rural Tourism.  

 
 

Table of uses: 
• Remove Non-Agricultural Uses/Activities Associated with Agri-Tourism  
• Remove Educational Farm Retreat  
• Add Rural Tourism 

 
Table of Uses – Business & Industrial Districts: 

• Add Bed and Breakfast Inn as a Conditional/Interim Use in Business Districts 
• Add Rural Tourism as a Conditional/Interim Use in Business Districts.  

 

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428/Zoning-Ordinances?bidId=


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

Article 11: 
 

• Section 13. Bed and Breakfast Inns – remove language that is required for all Rural Tourism 
operations  

• Remove Section 14. Educational Farm Retreat. The concept is like an AirBnB or VRBO which 
County Zoning does not regulate  

• Section 24. Preservation of Farming Practices – update definition for Agricultural Operation. 
• Section 25. Retreat Centers – remove language that is required for all Rural Tourism 

operations because Retreat Centers will be classified as Rural Tourism operations subject to 
all Rural Tourism performance standards and B&B performance standards.  

• Section 30. Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism will be replaced with 
Rural Tourism. Requirements for an application and most performance standards remain the 
same. B&Bs and Retreat Centers are called out specifically because they both have separate 
performance standards apart from the Rural Tourism standards they must also comply with. 
Amended some standards so they are only applicable to operations with 50+ guests because 
Retreat Centers may have a maximum of 50 guestss and B&Bs are capped at 15 guests.  

 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record, and recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the amendments 
to Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance Standards), and 20 (Table of Uses).   































A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 CS

P P P P P
NP NP NP P NP
P P P P P

C/I  C/I C/I NP C/I
NP NP NP  C/I NP

P P NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
P P P NP NP
P C/I NP NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP

P P P NP P
P P P NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
P P P NP NP
P P P NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP C/I
C/I C/I C/I NP NP

I

P P P NP NP

P P P P P
P P P I I
I I I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP

Rural Tourism Facilities (Art.11 § 30) C/I C/I C/I bc NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP

P P NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP

a. Accessory buildings > 500ft 2  shall be ≥ 100ft from any lot line and ≥ 200ft from the nearest dwelling (Art.23 § 3 subd. 1)
b. Any mining, excavating, or filling of land for these uses shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 10)

c. Accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to this use shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 11)
KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

1 Animal Unit per acre on a minimum 1-acre parcel

Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard (Art.11 § 10)
Mining, Quarrying, Excavating/Filling  (Art.14)

Industrial

Contractors Yard (Art.11 § 33)
Veterinary Clinic

Home Businesses - Tier 3 (Art.11 § 12)
Commercial Kennel/Raising of fur-bearing animals (Art.11 § 26)
Commercial/Industrial Uses primarily intended to serve Ag. Community
Boarding or Rooming Houses as an accessory use
Bed and Breakfast Inn (Art.11 § 13)

Home Businesses - Tier 1 (Art.11 § 12)
Home Businesses - Tier 2 (Art.11 § 12)

Agricultural Tourism Accessory Uses (Art. 11 § 28) (including, but not limited to, barn dances, corn 
mazes, gift shops, petting farms, sleigh/hay rides, vineyard harvest festivals)

Commercial 

Farm Wineries > 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

Two, Three, Or Four Family Dwellings

Mobile Home Park ( Art. 16 )
Residential Accessory Buildings ≥ 7,200ft2 (Art. 11 § 6)
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) (Art. 11 § 31)

New Feedlot (Art.13)

Agricultural 
Feedlots (Art.13)

Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand < 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand > 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Plant Nurseries & Sales
Farm Wineries < 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Table of Uses

Use

Single-Family Dwelling

Temporary/Seasonal Off-Site Roadside Produce Stands
Education Farm Retreat (Art. 11 § 14)

New Feedlot outside of Farmyard (Art.13)

Residential 

Agricultural Operations (including tree farms) (Art.11 § 24)

Feedlot expansion up to ≤ 100 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 300 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 500 Animal Units (Art.13)
Animal waste storage structure ≥ 500,000 gallons (lagoon system, earthen basin, or associated 
structure [pit]) (Art.13)



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 CS

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP NP C/I C/I
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP NP
NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Iabc NP NP

NP C/I NP NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

P P P P P
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP NP
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
P P P P P
P P P P P

C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP C/I

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Table of Uses

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Storage Structure (size & location to be approved by the Planning 
Advisory Commission)

Public Stable

Non-agricultural Lagoons (In accordance w/ MPCA regulations)
Migratory Labor Camp
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

Institutional
Community Building

Cemetery
Memorial Garden

Park/Recreational Area (operated by a governmental agency)
Park/Recreational Area
Hunting Club/Shooting Preserve
Campground &/or RV Site (Art.16 § 7)
Park Manager's Residence (1 per campground/RV park w/ ≥ 30 campsites)

Recreational 

Miscellaneous

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Aircraft Landing Fields & Facilities 

Use

Private School
Nursery School

Sanitary Landfills/Sewage Disposal Works

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Health Facilities

Retreat Centers (Art.11 § 25)

Church

WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)

Funeral Home
Hospital, Sanitarium, Philanthropic/Eleemosynary Institutions (except correctional institutions, animal 
hospitals)

WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)

Public School

SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Facilities (including, but not limited to, Golf Courses/Driving Ranges, 
Tennis Courts, Skiing, Swimming Pools, Park Facilities)



B I

P NP
P NP

C/I NP
P NP

C/I NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P P
     Building materials storage yards NP P
     Contractor's establishment, storage yard, or equipment rental NP P
     Grain elevator including storage and processing NP P

 Funeral Home
 Beauty shop or barber shop
 Bank or savings and loan institution

   Professional offices
   Drive-in establishment including banks and restaurant
   Eating or drinking establishment
   Motel
   Bed & Breakfast Inn

Industrial
     Assembly of previously prepared materials which have been manufactured elsewhere

Entertainment/Recreational Establishments
   Theater, dance hall, bowling alley, pool or billiard hall
   Public swimming pool, roller or ice rink

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

     Rural Tourism Facilities (Art. 11 § 30)

     Building supply sales
     Boat sales or repair
     Landscape nursery or commercial greenhouse
     Shopping center

Services

     Truck sales or service, truck wash or truck repair garage

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Business and Industrial Districts Table of Uses

Use
Retail

   Retail stores under 40,000 square feet
   Automotive service station
   Retail stores over 40,000 square feet

     Automobile sales, car wash, trailer sales or service, auto repair garage, or automobile rental
     Motor fuel station
     Agricultural equipment sales or service



B I
NP P
NP P

NP P

NP C/I
NP C/I
P P

NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I

C/I C/I

P P
C/I P
NP C/I
NP P
C/I C/I
P P
P P

C/I C/I
P P

C/I C/I

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)
WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)
WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)
SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

  Residence when included as part of the principal building occupied by owner or their employee
  Self service storage facility

Miscellaneous

   Fertilizer manufacture, compost or storage
   Refining or recovery of products from animal refuse or offal
   Junkyard
   Livestock feeding yards, slaughtering of animals or stock yards
   Petroleum or asphalt refining or manufacturing
   Smelting or refining of metals from ores
   Steam board hammers or forging presses
   Storing, curing, or tanning of raw, green or salted hides or skins

Institutional
Church

 Explosives manufacture or storage

Use
Wholesale establishment: warehousing, storage buildings, commercial laundries or dry cleaning plants
Manufacture, compounding or treatment of materials
Manufacturing process or treatment of products using light machinery; such as tool and die shops or 
metal fabricating plants
Manufacturing of cement, lime, gypsum or plaster
Distillation of bone, coal, tar petroleum, refuse, grain or wood

   Essential services building or storage yards

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Business and Industrial Districts Table of Uses




